

Sunshine Act Meetings

Federal Register

Vol. 53, No. 134

Wednesday, July 13, 1988

This section of the FEDERAL REGISTER contains notices of meetings published under the "Government in the Sunshine Act" (Pub. L. 94-409) 5 U.S.C. 552b(e)(3).

FEDERAL MINE SAFETY AND HEALTH REVIEW COMMISSION

July 7, 1988.

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., Thursday, July 14, 1988.

PLACE: Room 600, 1730 K Street, NW., Washington, DC.

STATUS: Open.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED: The Commission will consider and act upon the following:

1. *Mettiki Coal Corporation*, Docket No. YORK-87-1-R, etc. (Issues include whether the judge erred in finding that Mettiki did not violate 30 CFR 75.305)
2. *Peabody Coal Company*, Docket No. KENT 86-94-R, etc. (Issues include whether the judge erred in finding violations of 30 CFR 75.1710-1)

Any person intending to attend this meeting who requires special accessibility features and/or auxiliary aids, such as sign language interpreters, must inform the Commission in advance of those needs. Subject to 29 CFR 2706.150(a)(3) and 2706.160(d).

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: Jean Ellen (202) 653-5629/ (202) 566-2673 for TDD Relay.

Jean H. Ellen,

Agenda Clerk.

[FR Doc. 88-15727 Filed 7-11-88; 9:09 am]

BILLING CODE 6735-01-M

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[USITC SE-88-16]

TIME AND DATE: Monday, July 18, 1988 at 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 101, 500 E Street, SW., Washington, DC 20436.

STATUS: Open to the public.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Agenda.
2. Minutes.
3. Ratification.
4. Petitions and Complaints.
5. Inv. No. 731-TA-409 and 410(P) (Certain light-walled rectangular pipes and tubes from Argentina and Taiwan)—Briefing and vote.

6. Any item left over from previous agenda.

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE

INFORMATION: Kenneth R. Mason, Secretary, (202) 252-1000.

Kenneth R. Mason,

Secretary.

July 6, 1988

[FR Doc. 88-15730 Filed 7-11-88; 9:10 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-M

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[USITC SE-88-17]

TIME AND DATE: Monday, July 22, 1988 at 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Room 101, 500 E Street, SW., Washington, DC 20436.

STATUS: Open to the public.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Inv. TA-201-61 (Certain Knives)—briefing and vote on injury.

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE

INFORMATION: Kenneth R. Mason, Secretary, (202) 252-1000.

Kenneth R. Mason,

Secretary.

July 6, 1988

[FR Doc. 88-15731 Filed 7-11-88; 9:10 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-M

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[USITC SE-88-15A]

"FEDERAL REGISTER" CITATION OF PREVIOUS ANNOUNCEMENT: 53 FR 24398—dated June 28, 1988.

PREVIOUSLY ANNOUNCED TIME AND DATE OF THE MEETING: 3:00 p.m., Monday, July 11, 1988.

CHANGE IN TIME OF THE MEETING: 10:00 a.m., Monday, July 11, 1988.

In conformity with 19 CFR 201.37(b), Commissioners Brunsdale, Eckes, Lodwick, Rohr, and Cass determined that Commission business required the change in time of the meeting on July 11, 1988, and affirmed that no earlier announcement of the change to the time was possible, and directed the issuance of this notice at the earliest practicable time. Commissioner Liebler was not available to participate in the decision.

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE

INFORMATION: Kenneth R. Mason, Secretary, (202) 252-1000.

Kenneth R. Mason,

Secretary.

July 6, 1988.

[FR Doc. 88-15732 Filed 7-11-88; 9:10 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-M

NATIONAL FOUNDATION ON THE ARTS AND HUMANITIES

AGENCY: Institute of Museum Services.

ACTION: Notice of meeting.

SUMMARY: This notice sets forth the agenda of a forthcoming meeting of the National Museum Services Board. This notice also describes the functions of the Board. Notice of this meeting is required under the Government in the Sunshine Act (Pub. L. 94-409) and regulations of the Institute of Museum Services, 45 CFR 1180.84.

TIME & DATE: 10:00 a.m., Thursday, July 21, 1988.

STATUS: Open and closed.

ADDRESS: The New England Aquarium, Central Wharf, Boston, Massachusetts, 02110, (617) 973-5209.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

S. William Laney, Executive Assistant to the National Museum Services Board, Room 510, 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20506 (202) 786-0536.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The National Museum Services Board is established under the Museum Services Act, Title II of the Arts, Humanities, and Cultural Affairs Act of 1976, Pub. L. 94-462. The Board has responsibility for the general policies with respect to the powers, duties, and authorities vested in the Institute under this Title. Grants are awarded by the Institute of Museum Services after review by the Board.

The meeting of July 21, 1988 will be open to the public from 10:00 a.m. until the closed session portion of item V, section C and D, and open again to the public from item V, section E through discussion of item VI. The meeting will be closed to the public for the portion relating to discussion of PSP applications in agenda item V, section C and pursuant to paragraphs 6, 9(B), and other relevant provisions of subsection (c) of section 552b of Title 5, United States Code and pursuant to 45 CFR 1180.88, because the Board will consider

information that may disclose:
Information of a personal nature the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of privacy; and information the disclosure of which might significantly impede implementation of proposed agency actions related to the grant award process.

If you need special accommodations due to a disability, please contact: Institute of Museum Services, Room 510 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20506, (202) 786-0536, TDD (202) 682-5496 at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting.

National Museum Services Board

July 21, 1988 Meeting Agenda

I. Approval of Minutes of April 22, 1988 Meeting.

II. Director's Report.

III. Legislative and Regulatory Update.

IV. Program Report.

A. Museum Assessment Program.

B. General Operating Support.

C. Conservation Program—There will be a closed session portion of this agenda item.

D. Professional Services Program—There will be a closed session portion of this agenda item.

V. Presentation of Reports.

VI. Other Business.

Dated: July 6, 1988.

Lois Burke Shepard,
Director.

Certification of Closed Meeting

In accordance with section 3(f)(1) of the Government in the Sunshine Act (5 U.S.C. 552b (c)) and with the applicable regulations of the Institute of Museum Services (45 CFR 1180.88), I hereby certify that the portion of the meeting of the National Museum Services Board ("Board"), scheduled for July 21, 1988 in Boston, Massachusetts, at which the Board will consider applications for assistance from IMS, may properly be closed to the public on the basis of the exemption set forth in the regulations of the Institute, 45 CFR Part 1180, Subpart G, Appendix A, paragraph 6.

Lois Burke Shepard,

Director, Institute of Museum Services.

[FR Doc. 88-15876 Filed 7-11-88; 3:11 pm]

BILLING CODE 7036-01-M

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Agency Meeting

"FEDERAL REGISTER" CITATION OF PREVIOUS ANNOUNCEMENT: (53 FR 24399 June 28, 1988 and 53 FR 25567 July 7, 1988).

STATUS: Open meeting.

PLACE: 450 Fifth Street, NW., Washington, DC.

DATE PREVIOUSLY ANNOUNCED:

Thursday, June 23, 1988 and Friday, July 1, 1988.

CHANGES IN THE MEETING: Deletion.

The following item was not considered at an open meeting scheduled for Thursday, July 7, 1988, at 2:00 p.m.

Consideration of whether to authorize for publication (1) a release adopting amendments to Regulation S-X that would require accountants' reports included in Commission filings to be signed by an independent accountant who within the last three years has undergone a peer review of its accounting and auditing practice, and (2) a release publishing for comment proposals to specify procedures to be used for review an accountant's audit work pending the accountant's compliance with peer review requirements when the accountant first becomes subject to the requirement due to accepting a Commission registrant as a client or a current client becoming a Commission registrant. For further information, please contact John Heyman at (202) 272-2130.

At times changes in Commission priorities require alterations in the scheduling of meeting items. For further information and to ascertain what, if any, matters have been added, deleted or postponed, please contact: Kevin Fogarty at (202) 272-3195.

Jonathan G. Katz,

Secretary,

July 8, 1988.

[FR Doc. 88-15712 Filed 7-11-88; 9:08 am]

BILLING CODE 8010-01-M

Corrections

This section of the FEDERAL REGISTER contains editorial corrections of previously published Presidential, Rule, Proposed Rule, and Notice documents and volumes of the Code of Federal Regulations. These corrections are prepared by the Office of the Federal Register. Agency prepared corrections are issued as signed documents and appear in the appropriate document categories elsewhere in the issue.

COMMITTEE FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF TEXTILE AGREEMENTS

Announcement of Import Limits for Certain Cotton and Man-Made Fiber Textile Products Produced or Manufactured in the Republic of Turkey

Correction

In notice document 88-15199 beginning on page 25526 in the issue of Thursday, July 7, 1988, make the following correction:

On page 25527, in the table, in the entry opposite "341", "325,000" should read "525,000".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY

44 CFR Part 62

National Flood Insurance Program; Assistance to Private Sector Property Insurers

Correction

In rule document 88-9378 beginning on page 15208 in the issue of Thursday, April 28, 1988, make the following correction:

Appendix B [Corrected]

On page 15219, in the second column, in Appendix B to Part 62, Part 6, the 17th and 18th lines should read as follows:

"—Large/unusual balance in Cash-Other (Receivable and/or Payable)."

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

45 CFR Part 85

Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or Activities Conducted by the Department of Health and Human Services

Correction

In rule document 88-15382 beginning on page 25595 in the issue of Friday, July 8, 1988, make the following corrections:

1. On page 25597, in the second column, in the fourth complete paragraph, in the ninth line, "by" should read "be".

2. On page 25600, in the third column, in the third complete paragraph, in the fourth line, "form" should read "for".

3. On page 25607, in § 85.61(d), in the first line, "the" should read "and".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Food and Drug Administration

21 CFR Part 172

[Docket No. 84F-0408]

Food Additives Permitted for Direct Addition to Food for Human Consumption; Sucrose Fatty Acid Esters

Correction

In rule document 88-13434 beginning on page 22294 in the issue of Wednesday, June 15, 1988, make the following correction:

On page 22297, in the first column, in the first complete paragraph, in the second line, "test" should read "text".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

Federal Register

Vol. 53, No. 134

Wednesday, July 13, 1988

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Food and Drug Administration

21 CFR Part 522

Animal Drugs, Feeds, and Related Products; Hyaluronate Sodium Injection

Correction

In rule document 88-13432 beginning on page 22297 in the issue of Wednesday, June 15, 1988, make the following correction:

On page 22297, in the third column, after paragraph 2., the part heading should read:

PART 522—IMPLANTATION OR INJECTABLE DOSAGE FORM NEW ANIMAL DRUGS NOT SUBJECT TO CERTIFICATION

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Food and Drug Administration

21 CFR Part 355

[Docket No. 80N-0042]

Anticaries Drug Products for Over-the-Counter Human Use; Tentative Final Monograph

Correction

In proposed rule document 88-13431 beginning on page 22430 in the issue of Wednesday, June 15, 1988, make the following corrections:

1. On page 22442, in the third column, in the second complete paragraph, in the ninth line, "calories" should read "caries".

2. On page 22444, in the third column, in paragraph 14., in the ninth line from the bottom, after "Edition III," insert "page 271,".

§ 355.70 [Corrected]

3. On page 22447, in the third column, in § 355.70, in the 14th line, "or" should read "on".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Food and Drug Administration

[Docket No. 88N-0248]

Drug Export; Platinol AQ Injection 1 mg/1 mL (Cisplatin)
Correction

In notice document 88-15006 appearing on page 25212 in the issue of Tuesday, July 5, 1988, make the following corrections:

In the second column, in the second line of the subject heading, and under **SUMMARY** in the last line, "ml" should read "mL".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Bureau of Indian Affairs
48 CFR Parts 1452 and 1480
Acquisition Regulations; Buy Indian Act; Procedures for Contracting Pursuant to the Act of June 25, 1910
Correction

In proposed rule document 88-14583 beginning on page 24738 in the issue of Thursday, June 30, 1988, make the following corrections:

1. On page 24738, in the third column, in the second complete paragraph, in the second line, "public" was misspelled.
2. On page 24740, in the second

column, in the 11th line from the bottom, "sure" should read "aware".

1480.401 [Corrected]

3. On page 24742, in the third column, in section 1480.401, in the last line, "place" should read "price".

1480.700 [Corrected]

4. On page 24745, in the first column, section 1480.700(a), in the first line "contracting" was misspelled.

5. On the same page, in the same column, in section 1480.700(d), in the second line, "complied" should read "compiled".

1480.702 [Corrected]

6. On the same page, in the second column, in section 1480.702(c)(4), in the first line, "Department" should read "Debarment".

1480.802 [Corrected]

7. On page 24746, in the second column, in section 1480.802(b), in the 13th line, "materials" was misspelled.

1480.803 [Corrected]

8. On the same page, in the same column, in section 1480.803, in the ninth line, "question" was misspelled.

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Pension and Welfare Benefits Administration

[Application No. D-5600]

Amendments to Prohibited Transaction Exemption (PTE) 82-87 for Transactions Involving Certain Residential Mortgage Financing Arrangements
Correction

In notice document 88-14794 beginning

on page 24811 in the issue of Thursday, June 30, 1988, make the following corrections:

1. On page 24812, in the second column, in the ninth line, "prohibitions" was misspelled.

2. On page 24813, in the second column, in the last paragraph, in the 13th line, "tandem" was misspelled.

3. On page 24816, in the second column, in paragraph "D", in the 21st line, insert "under" after "applicable".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Research and Special Programs Administration
49 CFR Parts 192 and 193

[Docket No. PS-96, Amdts. 191-6, 192-59, 193-5, 195-39]

Reporting Unsafe Conditions on Gas and Hazardous Liquid Pipelines and Liquefied Natural Gas Facilities
Correction

In rule document 88-14758 beginning on page 24942 in the issue of Friday, July 1, 1988, make the following corrections:

1. On page 24959, in the first column, under amendatory instruction 8, in the section heading "§ 191.605" should read "§ 192.605".

2. On the same page, in the same column, under amendatory instruction 10, in the section heading "§ 191.2605" should read "§ 193.2605".

BILLING CODE 1505-01-D

5010-108-01

Wednesday
July 13, 1988

Part II

Office of Personnel Management

5 CFR Part 930

Training Requirement for the Computer
Security Act; Interim Regulation

OFFICE OF PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT

5 CFR Part 930

Training Requirement for the Computer Security Act

AGENCY: Office of Personnel Management.

ACTION: Interim regulation.

SUMMARY: This regulation implements Pub. L. 100-235, the Computer Security Act of 1987, which requires training for all employees responsible for the management and use of Federal computer systems that process sensitive information. Under the regulation agencies will be responsible for identifying the employees to be trained and providing appropriate training.

DATES: Interim rule effective July 13, 1988. Submit written comments on or before September 12, 1988.

ADDRESSES: Send written comments to Mr. Harold Segal, Chief, Policy and Oversight Branch, Office of Training and Development, Training and Investigations, Office of Personnel Management, P.O. Box 7230, Washington, DC 20044, or deliver to 1121 Vermont Avenue NW., Room 1215, Washington, DC 20005.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Ms. Constance Guitian, Policy and Oversight Branch, (202) 632-9769.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Public Law 100-235, the "Computer Security Act of 1987", requires mandatory periodic training for all employees involved in the management or use of Federal computer systems that contain sensitive information. In order to accomplish this goal the law requires the National Bureau of Standards (NBS) to develop guidelines for the training of employees in security awareness and accepted security practices. The Office of Personnel Management (OPM), however, is required to issue regulations for the training within six months (July 8, 1988) of the passage of the law. The law further requires that agencies initiate training within 60 days of the issuance of the regulation. This means that agencies should start their training programs by September 8, 1988.

The preparation of these regulations required extensive coordination with NBS. Pursuant to sections 553 (b)(3) and (d)(3) of title 5 of the United States Code, I find that good cause exists to make this amendment effective in less than 30 days. The regulation is being made effective immediately in order to meet a statutory deadline. Even though we are issuing these regulations as

interim effective immediately, we are inviting comments for a 60-day period. Those comments will be given consideration in the final regulations which we plan to issue within 120 days after the comment period. OPM has worked with NBS in defining areas that should be included in training activities and these are embodied in the regulation. The principal features of the regulation are:

(1) The subject matter of the training should stress awareness of the computer system's vulnerabilities and risks and be organized around each agency's computer security policies, practices and procedures;

(2) Training is a continuing process; and,

(3) Refresher training must be provided as appropriate.

The depth of coverage for each of the subjects listed in the regulation should depend on the sensitivity of the data to which the employee has access and the employee's level of responsibility and authority with respect to the information. Each agency will have to decide the appropriate level of training for its employees. The agency may include computer security awareness as a part of existing computer training, management courses and employee orientation. In addition, agencies should explore non-classroom modes of delivery of training such as computer assisted training, video tapes, workbooks, job aids and desk guides.

The Congressional Budget Office estimates that about half of all Government employees will need computer security training to make them aware of the vulnerability of sensitive information and the risks of unauthorized use. Training for most of these employees will not be technical in nature but will teach them how to safeguard the information to which they have access. Although training is of vital importance to a security program, it is only a part of a larger information management system. Agency management needs to foster a work environment where information security is seen as critical to accomplishing the agency's mission.

This regulation will be issued in Part 930 of the Code of Federal Regulations and subsequent Federal Personnel Manual guidance will be issued as an appendix to Chapter 410. The regulation may be changed when NBS issues its guidelines. The law allows the agency head the option to exempt the agency from the training requirements of the guidelines if it is determined that the agency has an alternative training program at least as effective as the one described in the guidelines.

Office of Personnel Management.
Constance Horner,
Director.

Accordingly, the Office of Personnel Management adds Subpart C to Part 930 to read as follows:

Subpart C—Employees Responsible for the Management or Use of Federal Computer Systems

Sec.

- 930.301 Training requirement.
- 930.302 Initial training.
- 930.303 Continuing training.
- 930.304 Refresher training.

Subpart C—Employees Responsible for the Management or Use of Federal Computer Systems

Authority: 40 U.S.C. 759 note.

§ 930.301 Training requirement.

(a) The head of each agency shall identify and provide training in computer security, which emphasizes an awareness of the vulnerabilities and risks of the systems, to all employees responsible for the management or use of Federal computer systems¹ that process sensitive information.²

(b) The objective of the training is to provide employees an awareness of the vulnerabilities and risks of the computer system. The training should also provide the knowledge and skills needed to apply an agency's computer security policies, practices, and procedures.

(c) The training shall include as appropriate agency computer security practices and procedures for:

- (1) Meeting information security objectives;
- (2) Responsibility and accountability;
- (3) Information accessibility, handling, and storage;
- (4) Physical and environmental hazard protection;
- (5) System and data access controls;
- (6) Emergency and disaster situations;

¹ Under the statute, the term "Federal computer system": (A) means a computer system operated by a Federal agency or by a contractor of a Federal agency or other organization that processes information (using a computer system) on behalf of the Federal Government to accomplish a Federal function; and

(B) includes automatic data processing equipment as that term is defined in section 111(a)(2) of the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949.

² Under the statute, the term "sensitive information" means any information, the loss, misuse, or unauthorized access to or modification of which could adversely affect the national interest or the conduct of Federal programs, or the privacy to which individuals are entitled under section 552a of title 5, United States Code (the Privacy Act), but which has not been specifically authorized under criteria established by an Executive order or an Act of Congress to be kept secret in the interest of national defense or foreign policy.

(7) Identification of threats and vulnerabilities; and

(8) Other security related matters.

§ 930.302 Initial training.

The head of each agency shall start the initial required training for all employees responsible for the management or use of Federal computer systems that process sensitive information within 60 days of the

effective date of this regulation. The head of the agency shall provide the initial required training to all such new employees within 60 days of their appointment.

§ 930.303 Continuing training.

The head of each agency shall provide training whenever there is a significant change in the agency information security environment or procedures.

§ 930.304 Refresher training.

Computer security awareness refresher training which covers, as appropriate, the topics outlined in § 930.301 of this part shall be given as frequently as determined necessary by the agency based on the sensitivity of the information.

[FR Doc. 88-15659 Filed 7-8-88; 2:52 pm]

BILLING CODE 6325-01-M